FEDERAL COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION
Enforcement Bureau
Investigations and Hearings Division
445 12* Street, SW
Washington, DC 20554

November 22, 2016

VIA CERTIFIED MAIL RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED
AND FACSIMILE AT 919-839-0304

Mr. J. Timothy Hannan

Executive Vice President

News-Press & Gazette Company, Parent of Gulf-California Broadcast Company
825 Edmond Street

Saint Joseph, Missouri 64501

Ms. Elizabeth E. Spainhour

Counsel to Gulf-California Broadcast Company
Brooks Pierce

1600 Wells Fargo Capitol Center

150 Fayetteville Street

Raleigh, North Carolina 27601

Re:  File No. EB-THD-16-00021742

Dear Mr. Hannan and Ms. Spainhour:

The Enforcement Bureau is investigating whether Gulf-California Broadcast Company (Gulf-
California), violated the sponsorship identification requirements of Sections 317 and 507 of the
Communications Act of 1934, as amended (Act), and Section 73.1212 of the Commission’s rules (Rules)
by failing to provide sponsorship announcements for program material promoting individuals and
businesses that provided payments or other valuable Consideration, as defined herein, to Station
employees in exchange for such on-air promotion.! We have reviewed Gulf-California’s response? to our
July 25, 2016, Letter of Inquiry (LOI),? and have additional requests for information and documents.

- In addition, Gulf-California’s failure to completely respond to the LOI constitutes a violation of
our rules and may result in enforcement action.* You failed to provide, in response to Document Request

147U.8.C. §§ 317, 508; 47 CFR. § 73.1212.

2 Letter of Inquiry Response from Elizabeth E. Spainhour, counsel to Gulf-California Broadcast Company, to
Melanie A. Godschall, Attorney Advisor, Investigations and Hearings Division, FCC Enforcement Bureau (Aug. 23,
2016) (on file in EB-IHD-16-00021742) (LOI Response).

3 Letter of Inquiry from Matthew L. Conaty, Deputy Chief, Investigations and Hearings Division, FCC Enforcement
Bureau to Mr. J. Timothy Hannan, Executive Vice-President, News-Press & Gazette Company, Parent of Gulf-
California Broadcast Company (July 25, 2016 LOI).

4 See, e.g., Net One Int’l, Net One, LLC, Farrahtel Int’l, LLC, Forfeiture Order, 29 FCC Red 264, 267, para. 9 (EB
2014) (imposing a $25,000 penalty for failure to respond to LOI); Conexions, LLC d/b/a Conexion Wireless, Notice
of Apparent Liability for Forfeiture and Order, 28 FCC Red 15318, 15325, para. 22 (2013) (proposing a $300,000
forfeiture for failure to provide timely and complete responses to an LOI); Technical Communication Network, LLC
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32, federal tax returns for the most recent three years or other information that reflects the Licensee’s
current financial status.®> The LOI and this follow-up letter constitute Orders of the Commission to
produce the documents and information requested.® In addition, to knowingly and willfully make any
false statement or conceal any material fact in reply to our inquiry is punishable by fine or imprisonment.”
Accordingly, we direct Gulf-California pursuant to Sections 4(i), 4(j), 308(b), and 403 of the Act,? to
provide the information and documents requested herein within thirty (30) calendar days after the date -
of this letter of inquiry (LOI). ‘

If you have any questions about this matter, please contact Melanie Godschall at 202-418-7259 or
Melanie.Godschall@fcc.gov.

Sincerely,

Matthew L. Conaty

Deputy Chief

Investigations and Hearings Division
Enforcement Bureau

Attachments

Apparent Liability for Forfeiture, Notice of Apparent Liability for Forfeiture and Order, 28 FCC Red 1018, 1020,
para. 8 (EB 2013) (proposing a $25,000 forfeiture for failure to provide a complete response to an LOI); Hauppauge
Computer Works, Inc., Notice of Apparent Liability for Forfeiture and Order, 23 FCC Red 3684,73688, para. 11 (EB
2008) (proposing an $11,000 forfeiture for failure to respond to an LOT) (forfeiture paid); Digital Antenna, Inc.
Sunrise, Florida, Notice of Apparent Liability for Forfeiture and Order, 23 FCC Red 7600, 7603, para. 10 (EB
2008) (proposing $11,000 forfeiture for failure to provide a complete response to an LOI); SBC Communications,
Inc., Forfeiture Order, 17 FCC Red 7589, 7600, para. 28 (2002) (imposing $100,000 penalty for failing to submit a
sworn written response).

5 See July 25,2016 LOI at 9, Document Request 32.
6 See 47 U.S.C. §155(0)(3).

7 See 18 U.S.C. § 1001; see also 47 CF.R. § 1.17; SBC Communications, Inc, 17 FCC Red at 7600, para. 28
(Commission imposed a $100,000 fine against the carrier for its failure to verify its response to an agency inquiry
with a required sworn statement).

847 U.S.C. §§ 154(i), 154()), 308(b), 403.
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ATTACHMENT A

Inquiries: Information and Documents to be Provided

You must provide the following information and documents as requested below, and in
accordance with the Instructions and Definitions set forth in the July 25, 2016 LOI and attached hereto,’
except as noted below.

Unless otherwise indicated, the time covered by these inquiries is January 5, 2015, to the present.

Requests for Information

1. For each instance of Programming depicted in or referenced by the social media postings in
Attachment B hereto, provide the following information:

(a) State the dates, times, and Station(s) on which the Programming was Broadcast.

(b) State whether the social media posting was made before or after the Broadcast of the
Programming on each Station.

(c¢) Provide a full description of the Broadcast during which the Programming aired,
including the content of the Broadcast and whether each such Broadcast of the
Programming was live or recorded.

(d) State whether each Broadcast of the Programming followed a script and if so, Identify all
Persons responsible for drafting, editing, and approving each script.

(e) Identify all Programming Personnel involved in each Broadcast of the Programming and
fully describe each Person’s respective role in the Broadcast process.

(f) Identify, with respect to the usernames listed in the social media postings in Attachment
B hereto, each and every employee, representative, or agent of Licensee, excepting
Bianca Rae Goutos and Alexandra Pawelski.

2. Identify all Persons listed in the response to Document Request 5(f) and 5(g) below.

3. Identify each and every Person referenced in footnote 1 of the LOI Response, excepting Bianca
Rae Goutos and Alexandra Pawelski, and, with respect to the “former employee[s]” of Gulf-
California, describe their terms of employment with Licensee, including dates of hiring and
firing, immediate supervisor, job duties and description, and reason(s) for termination.

4, Provide a description by category and location of all Documents!? and tangible things that the
Licensee has in its possession, custody, or control that are responsive to the questions herein.

Requests for Documents

5. For each discrete Broadcast of Programming listed in the responses to Inquiry 1 above, provide
the following:

(a) A recording of the Programming in a Windows Media Player compatible format
uploaded to a secure FTP site that may be accessed using electronic credentials that are

® The attached July 25, 2016 LOI includes Attachment A, wifh the Instructions and Definitions, but omits
Attachments B, C, and the Redacted Complaint and Enlarged Attachments Submitted with the Complaint.

10 Tn responding to this inquiry, note the definition below of the term “Document” in the Instructions to the July 25,
2016, LOL




J. Timothy Hannan

Gulf-California Broadcast Company
November 22, 2016

Page 4 of 5

sent via separate e-mail to: Matthew.Conaty@fcc.gov, Melanie.Godschall@fcc.gov, and
Terrell.Richardson@fcc.gov. In preparing the recording(s) in accordance with the
foregoing instructions, ensure that you

i. provide details within Gulf-California’s response to this LOI concerning this
separate e-mail, e.g., prospective sender’s name and e-mail address and
anticipated date and time of transmittal; and

ii. take measures sufficient to ensure that the recordings uploaded to this site be
accessible and available for transfer for at least 60 days from the date of Gulf-
California’s response to this LOL!!

(b) A written transcript of the Programming.

(¢) Any Documents that relate to such Programming, including e-mails, written agreements,
marketing materials, or invoices, and a narrative response explaining such Documents.

(d) A recording of each and every sponsorship identification, if any, in a Windows Media
Player compatible format uploaded to a secure FTP site that may be accessed using
electronic credentials that are sent via separate e-mail to: Matthew.Conaty@fcc.gov,
Melanie.Godschall@fcc.gov, and Terrell. Richardson@fcc.gov. In preparing the
recording(s) in accordance with the foregoing instructions, ensure that you

i. provide details within Gulf-California’s response to this LOI concerning this
separate e-mail, e.g., prospective sender’s name and e-mail address and
anticipated date and time of transmittal; and

ii. take measures sufficient to ensure that the recordings uploaded to this site be
accessible and available for transfer for at least 60 days from the date of Gulf-
California’s response to this LOL.!?

(e) copies of all written agreements and written accounts of all oral agreements that the
Licensee and/or its employees, representatives, or agents entered into with any Person
regarding the Broadcast of the Programming;

(f) copies of all written agreements and written accounts of all oral agreements between or
among Bianca Rae Goutos and any Person(s) regarding Consideration that she was paid,
received in-kind, or was promised and that is depicted Attachment B;

(g) copies of all written agreements and written accounts of all oral agreements that
Alexandra Pawelski between or among any Person(s) regarding Consideration that she
was paid, received in-kind, or was promised and that is depicted in Attachment B; and

(h) all Documents that relate to any such oral or written agreements listed in response to 5(f)
and 5(g) above.

6. Provide all Documents that relate to any payment of or promise to pay or provide Consideration
in-kind listed in response to Document Request 5(f) and 5(g) above. :

7. For each discrete Broadcast of Programming listed in response to Inquiry 1 above, provide all

11'Name the file associated with each recordmg that you provide with the file number referenced above and the date
and time of the Broadcast.

12 Name the file associated with each recording that you provide with the file number referenced above, the date and
time that the identification was Broadcast, and indicate that the recording is a Broadcast identification of the
Programming.
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Documents relating to the action(s), if any, that the Licensee took with regard to the
Consideration promised to or received by Bianca Rae Goutos and/or Alexandra Pawelski and/or
any other Licensee employee, agent or representative.

8. Provide all Documents that relate to each discrete Broadcast of Programming listed in response to
Inquiry 1 above and/or the social media postings in Attachment B hereto.

9. Provide: (1) federal tax returns for the most recent three years; (2) financial statements prepared
according to generally accepted accounting principles; or (3) some other reliable and objective
documentation that accurately reflects the Licensee’s current financial status.

10. Provide copies of all Documents that serve as the basis for or otherwise support the fesponses to
all the Inquiries above, to the extent not already provided.

The Filing Requirements, Instructions, and Definitions set forth in Attachment A to the July 25, 2016 LOI
are applicable to Gulf-California’s response, with the following exception:

Delivery Requirements. The Licensee shall send its response by hand or messenger delivery, by
commercial overnight courier, or by First-Class or overnight U.S. Postal Service mail.

If sent by messenger or hand delivery, the Licensee must make arrangements in advance by contacting
Melanie A. Godschall at Melanie.Godschall@fcc.gov or (202) 418-7259 no later than 5 business
days prior to delivery. The Licensee should direct its response to Marlene H. Dortch, Secretary, Federal
Communications Commission, 445 12% Street, SW, Room TW-A325, Washington, DC 20554, to the
attention of Melanie A. Godschall, Investigations and Hearings Division, Enforcement Bureau, Room 4-
C330, Federal Communications Commission, with a second copy included in the delivery to Matthew L.
Conaty, Deputy Chief, Investigations and Hearings Division, Enforcement Bureau.!?

If sent by commercial overnight mail (other than U.S. Postal Service Express Mail and Priority Mail), the
response should be sent to the attention of Melanie A. Godschall, Investigations and Hearings Division,
Enforcement Bureau, Federal Communications Commission, 9300 East Hampton Drive, Capitol Heights,
Maryland 20743, with a second copy included in the mailing to Matthew L. Conaty, Deputy Chief,
Investigations and Hearings Division, Enforcement Bureau.

If sent by first-class, Express, or Priority Mail, the response should be sent to Melanie A. Godschall,
Investigations and Hearings Division, Enforcement Bureau, Federal Communications Commission, 445
12% Street, SW, Room 4-C330, Washington, DC 20554, with a second copy included in the mailing to
Matthew L. Conaty, Deputy Chief, Investigations and Hearings Division, Enforcement Bureaui.

Electronic Copy. The Licensee shall also transmit a copy of the response via email to
Melanie.Godschall@fcc.gov and Matthew L. Conaty@fcc.gov. The electronic copy shall be produced in
a format that allows the Commission to access and use it, together with instructions and all other
materials necessary to use or interpret the data, including record layouts, data dictionaries, and a
description of the data’s source.

13 Originals and any copies of the response submitted via hand delivery or messenger must be held together with
rubber bands or fasteners and must be submitted without envelopes. See Public Notice, FCC Announces Change in
Filing Locations for Paper Documents, 24 FCC Red 14312 (2009).
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FEDERAL COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION
Enforcement Bureau
Investigations and Hearings Division
445 12™ Street, SW
Washington, DC 20554

July 25,2016

VIA CERTIFIED MAJL RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED
AND FACSIMILE AT 816-271-8695

Mr. J. Timothy Hannan

Executive Vice President

News-Press & Gazette Company, Parent of Gulf-California Broadcast Company
825 Edmond Street

Saint Joseph, Missouri 64501

Re:  File No. EB-THD-16-00021742

Dear Mr, Hannan;

The Enforcement Bureau is investigating potential violations of Sections 317 and 507 of the
Communications Act of 1934, as amended (Act), and Section 73.1212 of the Commission’s rules (Rules)
related to required sponsorship identification announcements and disclosure of certain payments.!
Accordingly, we direct Gulf-California Broadcast Company (Gulf-California), pursuant to Sections 4(j),
4(j), 308(b), and 403 of the Act,? to provide the information and documents requested herein within thirty
(30) calendar days after the date of this letter of inquiry (LOI). '

We are investigating whether Gulf-California violated the sponsorship identification requirements
of the Act and the Rules by failing to provide sponsorship announcements for program material
promoting individuals and businesses that provided payments or other valuable Consideration, as defined
herein, to Station employees in exchange for such on-air promotion, Specifically, we have received
complaints alleging that Bianca Rae, a morning news anchor at Station KESQ-TV, and Alexandra Pierce,
a news reporter at Station KESQ-TV, accepted or agreed to accept Consideration including, but not
limited to, clothing, shoes, spa and aesthetic services, and stylist services from individuals and businesses
in exchange for promoting those individuals and businesses during programming aired on the Station, but
that no required sponsorship announcements were aired even though Station managers were aware of
these on-air employees® promotional agreements.?

Section 317(a)(1) of the Act and Section 73.1212(a) of the Rules require a television station to
broadcast an announcement whenever money or othet valuable consideration is directly or indirectly paid
or promised to, or charged or accepted by, the station for the broadcast of program material.* The

147U.8.C. §§ 317, 508; 47 CF.R. § 73.1212.
247 U.8.C. §§ 154(i), 154(j), 308(b), 403.

" 3 All of the complainants have requested confidential treatment of their complaints. A redacted copy of one of the
complaints is attached. See Complaint, File'No. EB-IHD-16-00021509 (Feb. 7, 2016) (on file in EB-IHD-16-
00021742). :

447U.8.C. § 317(a)(1); 47 CE.R, § 73.1212(a).
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disclosure must be aired at the time that the material is broadcast, inform the viewer that the program is
sponsored, paid for, or furnished, either in whole or in part, and identify by whom or on whose behalf the
consxderatxon was paid to the station in exchange for airing such material,®

Section 507 of the Act (codified at 47 U.S.C. § 508) mandates that when an entity or individual
pays to have program material broadcast, both the person making the payment and the person receiving it

make a disclosure to the licensee in advance of the broadcast. This disclosure permits the licensee to air a
sponsorship identification announcement at the time of the broadcast to inform viewers or listeners that a
third party paid for the broadcast. The duty to disclose rests with any person involved in the production
or preparation of broadcast matter who receives or agrees to receive, or provides or promises to provide,
money or other consideration in exchange for the inclusion of program material in a broadcast.”

In addition, Section 317(c) of the Act and Section 73.1212(b) of the Rules require each licensee
to “exercise reasonable diligence” to obtain information from its employees and other individuals
concerning whether-particular program material is sponsored in order to enable the licensee to make the
required announcement.?

This LOI constitutes an order of the Commission to produce the documents and information
requested herein,” To knowingly and willfully make any false statement or conceal any material fact in
reply to this inquiry is punishable by fine or imprisonment.'® Failure to respond appropriately to this
LOI constitutes a violation of the Act and our Rules. n

" Attachment A to this letter includes ﬁling requirements and instructions for your response and
definitions for certain terms in this LOL. Requests for confidential treatment or claims of attorney-client
privilege or attorney work product must strictly meet the requirements stated in the attached instructions.

If the Enforcement Bureau determines that Gulf-California has acted in violation of the Act
and/or Rules, the continued violation of the disclosure requirements of Section 317 of the Act and Section
73.1212 of the Rules after the receipt of this LOI may subject Gulf-California to additional penalties,

5 See 47 CF.R. § 73.1212(a).

6 See 47 U.S.C, § 317(b).

7 8ee 47U.8.C. § 508(b).

847U.8.C. §317(c); 47 C.R.R. § 73.1212(b).

% See 47 U.S.C. § 155(c)(3).

10 Soe 18 U.S.C. § 1001; see also 47 CF.R., § 1.17.

11 See 47 U.S.C. 503(b)(1)(B); see also Net One Int’l, Net One, LLC, Farrahtel Int’l, LLC, Forfeiture Order, 29 FCC
Red 264, 267, para. 9 (Enf, Bur, 2014) (imposing a $25,000 penalty for failure to respond to LOI); Conexions, LLC

d/b/a Conexion Wireless, Notice of Apparent Liability for Forfeiture and Order, 28 FCC Red 15318, 15325, para. 22

(2013) (proposing a $300,000 forfeiture for failure to provide timely and complete responses to an LOI); Technical
Comme 'n Network, LLC, Notice of Apparent Liability for Forfeiture and Order, 28 FCC Red 1018, 1020, para. 8
(Enf. Bur, 2013) (proposing a $25,000 forfeiture for failure to provide a complete response to an LOI); SBC
Comme ’ns, Inc., Forfeiture Order, 17 FCC Red 7589, 7600, para, 28 (2002) (imposing $100,000 penalty for failing
to submit a sworn written response).
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If you have any questions about this matter, please contact Melanie Godschall at 202-418-7259 or
Melanie.Godschall@fcc.gov.

Sincerely,

Matthew L. Conaty

Deputy Chief

Investigations and Hearings Division
Enforcement Bureau

Attachments
cc, via Certified Mail Return Receipt Requested and Facsimile at 760-773-5128:

Mr. Mike Stutz

General Manager

Gulf-California Broadcast Company
31276 Dunham Way

Thousand Palms, California 92276
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ATTACHMENT A

Inquiries: Information and Ddéuments to be Provided

You must provide the following information and documents as requested below, and in
accordance with the Instructions and Definitions below.,

Unless otherwise indicated, the time covered by these inquiries is January 5, 2015, to the present,

Requests for Information

1. Describe the business structure of Gulf-California (e.g., corporation, sole proprietorship,
partnership, limited liability company, etc.), Ifit is a corporation, give the date and location of its
. incorporation and describe what type of corporation it is (e.g., public or privately held).!* Ifitisa
sole proprietorship, partnership, or limited liability company, Identify each owner, partner or
member, as applicable,”® In addition, Identify all parent and affiliate companies of Gulf-
California and explain their relationship with Gulf-California,

2. Identify the Licensee’s officers and directors and the positions that they held, respectively, for
each year from 2015 to the present. If it is a sole proprietorship, partnership, or limited liability
company, Identify each owner, partner, or member, as applicable."*

3. Identify the corporate headquarters address of the Licensee and the States in which the Licensee
is authorized to do business; indicate whether it is in good standing in each such State, Identify
the Tax Identification Number of the Licensee.

4. Identify the registered agent of the Licensee within the United States.

Identify the FCC Registration Number (FRN) or FRNs of Gulf-California and any parent and
affiliate companies of Gulf-California. ”

6. Identify any licenses, permits, certificates, or other authorization, including any Section 214
authorization for the resale of international long distance service, issued by the Commission held
by Gulf-California and/or held by any parent or affiliate companies of Gulf-California.

7. State whether Gulf-California has received any complaints or reports related to compliance with
the sponsorship identification requirements of the Act and the Rules. If so, provide full details of
such complaints, including the dates the complaints or reports were received, a description of the

" complaint or report, and the contact information of the complainant or reporter. In addition, if
Gulf-California has received any such complaints or reports, state what actions, if any, Gulf-
California has taken in response.

8. Identify Bianca Rae, the dates of her employment by.Licensee, and, chronologically, the title and
nature of each position she has held with Licensee,

9. Identify Alexandra Pierce, the dates of her employment by Licensee, and, chronologically, the .
title and nature of each position she has held with Licensee.

10. State whether Bianca Rae received or was promised Consideration from any source including, but

not limited to, the Persons listed in Attachment B, in exchange for the Broadcast of Programming

12 In responding to this inquiry, note the definition below of the term “Identify” when used in reference to a Person
in the Instructions to this letter,

B
414
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on any Station. If so:
(a) Identify the Persons from whom such consideration was received or promised;
(b) State the nature and value of the Consideration involved;

(c) State the dates on which the Consideration was promised or received;

(d) Provide a descripﬁon of the agreement, including whether the agreement was oral or
written, by which Bianca Rae received or was promised Consideration in exchange for
the Broadcast of Programming;

(e) Identify the Persons who negotiated, approved, or executed the agreement;

(f) State the dates, times, anid Station(s) on which the Programming was Broadcast pursuant
to the agreement;

(g) Provide a full description of the Broadcast during which the Programming aired,
including the content of the Broadcast and whether each such Broadcast of the
Programining was live or recorded;

(h) State whether each Broadcast of the Programming followed a script and if so, Identify all
of the Persons responsible for drafting, editing, and approving each script;

(i) Identify all Programming Personnel involved in each Broadcast of the Programming and
fully describe each Person’s respective role in the Broadcast process;-and

(i) State whether the Licensee announced that such Programming was aired in exchange for
Consideration and if so, specify the manner in which that sponsorship identification
occurred,

11. State whether Alexandra Pierce received or was promised Consideration from any source
including, but not limited to, the Persons listed in Attachment B, in exchange for the Broadcast of
Programming on any Station, If so:

(2) Identify the Persons from whom such consideration was received or promised;
(b) State the nature and value of the Consideration involved,;
(c) State the dates on which the Consideration was promised or received;

(d) Provide a description of the agreement, including whether the agreement was oral or
written, by which Alexandra Pierce received or was promised Consideration for the
Broadcast of Programming;

(e) Identify the Persons who negotiated, approved, or executed the agreement;

(f) State the dates, times, and Station(s) on which Programming was Broadcast pursuant to
the agreement;

(g) Provide a full description of the Broadcast during which the Programming aired,
including the content of the Broadcast and whether each such Broadcast of the
Programming was live or recorded;

(h) State whether each Broadcast of the Programming followed a script and if so, Identify all -

of the Persons responsible for drafting, editing, and approving each script;

(i) Identify all Programming Personnel involved in each Broadcast of the Programming and
fully describe each Person’s respective role in the Broadcast process; and
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12,

() State whether the Licensee announced that such Programming was aired in exchange for
Consideration and if so, specify the manner in which that sponsorship identification
occurred.

For each instance of Programming depicted or referenced in Attachment C,!* provide the

13.

14.

following information or, if such information has been previously provided in response to
Inquiries 10 and 11 above, provide a reference to such information contained within those
responses:

(a) State whether the Licensee or any Licensee employees, representatives, or agents
received or were promised Consideration from any source including, but not limited to,
the Persons listed in Attachment B, in exchange for the Broadcast of Programming.on
any Station. If so: ’

i, Identify the Persons from whom such consideration was received or promised;
ii. State the nature and value of the Consideration involved;

iii. State the dates on which the Consideration was promised or received,;

iv. Provide a description of the agreement, including whether the agreement was oral 4

or written, by which the Licensee and/or its employees, representatives, or agents
received or were promised Consideration in exchange for the Broadcast of
Programming;

v. Identify the Persons who negotiated, approved, or executed the agreement;

vi. State the dates, times, and Station(s) on which the Programming was Broadcast
pursuant to the agreement; )

vii. Provide a full description of the Broadcast during which the Programming aired,
Jincluding the content of the Broadcast and whether each such Broadcast of the
Programming was live or recorded;

viii. State whether each Broadcast of the Programming followed a script and if so,
Identify all Persons responsible for drafting, editing, and approving each script;

ix, Identify all Programming Personnel involved in each Broadcast of the
Programming and fully describe each Person’s respective role in the Broadcast
process; and

x. State whether the Licensee announced that such Programming was aired in
exchange for Consideration and if so, specify the manner in which that
sponsorship identification occurred.

For each Broadcast listed in response to Inquiries 10, 11, and 12 above, state whether any Person
provided any oral or written communications and/or materials to the Licensee indicating that any
Person had provided Consideration relating to the Programming. If so, prov1de the following
information:

(a) the dates on which the Licensee received such communications and/or materials; and
(b) a written account of any such oral communications.
For each Broadcast listed in response to Inquiries 10, 11, and 12 above, provide the following

15 The source of material in Attachment C is Bianca Rae’s and Alexandra Pierce’s Station Social Media Accounts
(Twitter, Instagram and/or Facebook).
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information:

(2) a full description of the actions and/or procedures, if any, the Licensee took to determine
whether the Programming required sponsorship identification;

(b) the dates on which such actions and/or procedures began and ended;

15,

16.

17.

18.

19.

(c)-the-Persons-who-autherized-er-performed such-actions-and/er-procedures; and
(d) a full description of the information obtained by means of such actions and/or procedures,

If the Licensee asserts that sponsorship identifications were not required in connection for a
Broadcast of Programming identified in response to Inquiries 10, 11, and 12 above, fully explain -
the basis for this assertion.

State whether the Licensee has policies, directives, and/or guidelines concerning Station Social
Media Accounts and/or postings of its employees, representatives or agents thereto. If so:

(a) Provide a description of such policies, directives, and/or guidelines;

(b) Provide a description of the Licensee’s oversight of Station Social Media Account
postings;

(c) Identlfy Licensee employees, representatlves or agents responsible for the oversight
described in Inquiry 16(b) above;

'(d) For each social media posting referenced in Attachment C that depicts Programmmg for
which the Licensee or any Licensee employee, agent or representative received or was
promised Consideration in exchange for the Broadcast of such Programming, provide a
full description of the actions and/or procedures, if any, that the Licensee took to
determine if the social media posting related to Programming for which the Licensee or
any Licensee employee, agent or representative received or was promised Consideration .
in exchange for the Broadcast of such Programming;

(e) Fully describe the results of the actions and/or procedures listed in response to Inquiry
16(d) above.

If the Licensee has no policies, directives, and/or guidelines concerning Station Social Media
Accounts and/or postings of its employees, representatives or agents thereto, then provide the

following information:

(a) an explanation as to why the Licensee has no such policies, directives, and/or guidelines;
and

(b) the nature of any such policies, directives, and/or guidelines discontinued by the Licensee
in the past; the date of their discontinuance; and the reason for their discontinuance.

State the nature and dates of the training and/or refresher training, if any, concerning the
sponsorship identification requirements of Sections 317 and 507 of the Act and Section 73,1212
of the Rules administered to or undertaken by the following Persons:

(a) Bianca Rae;
(b) Alexandra Pierce; and

(¢) Licensee employees, representatives, and agents Identlﬁed in response to Inquiry 16(c)
above.

For the period January 1, 2006, to the present, Identify any other instance when the Licensee
received or was issued a Letter of Inquiry, Citation, Warning Letter, Notice of Apparent Liability,
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20.

Forfeiture Order, or Admonishment from the Commission, or entered into a Consent Decree with
the Commission,
Identify any efforts by the Licensee to resolve or correct any noncompliance with the Act or

Rules prior to this LOL Identify any efforts by the Licensee to disclose to the Commission any
noncompliance with the Act or Rules prior to this LOL

21.

22.

Identify all Station employees, representatives, or agents fired or otherwise disciplined for
apparent violations of Section 317 or 507 of the Act or Section 73.1212 of the Rules and describe
the apparent violations and disciplinary actions.

Provide a description by category and location of all Documents! and tangible things that the
Licensee has in its possession, custody, or control that are responsive to the questions herein.

Requests for Documents

23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

For each Broadcast of Programming listed in the responses to Inquiries 10, 11, and 12 above,
provide the following:

(a) two recordings of the Programmirig-in DVD format and if the Programmmg was edited
before Broadcast, two recordings of the unedited Programming in DVD format;!’?

(b) a written transcript of the Programming;

(c) any Documents that relate to such Programming, including e-mails, written agreements,
marketing materials, or invoices;

(d) arecording of any sponsorship identification in DVD format;'®

- (e) copies of all written agreements and written accounts of all oral agreements that the
Licensee and/or its employees, representatives, or agents entered into with any Person
regarding the Broadcast of the Programming; and

() all Documents that relate to any such oral or written agreements Identified in response to
Inquiries 10, 11, and 12 above. :

Provide all Documents that relate to any payment of or promise to pay Consideration identified in
response to Inquiries 10, 11, and 12 above.

For each Broadcast listed in the responses to Inquiries 10, 11, and 12 above, provide all
Documents relating to the actions, if any, that the Licensee took to determine if Bianca Rae
and/or Alexandra Pierce, referenced above in the introductory paragraphs of this letter, or any
other Licensee employee, agent or representative had received or been promised Consideration by
any Person in exchange for promoting or discussing that Person’s products, merchandise, and/or
services during Broadcast of any Programming.

Provide all documents related to the social media postings listed in response to Inquiry 16(d)
above.

Provide a copy of all written policies and directives of the Licensee relating to the Licensee’s

16 In responding to this inquiry, note the definition below of the term “Document” in the Instructions to this letter,

17 Clearly label each recording provided with the file number referenced above and the date and time of the
Broadcast,

18 Clearly label each recording provided with the file number referenced above, the date and time that the
identification was Broadcast, and indicate that the recording is a Broadcast identification of the Programming,
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28.

29.

compliance with Sections 317 and 507 of the Act and Section 73.1212 of the Rules.

Provide a copy of all written policies and directives of the Licensee relating to Station Social
Media Accounts.

Provide a copy of each affidavit, acknowledgement, or other certification concerning awareness

30.

31

32,

33.

of or compliance with the statutory and regulatory provisions governing payola and sponsorship
identification contained in 47 U.S.C. §§ 317 or 508 and in 47 C.F.R. § 73.1212 executed by the

by the following: ’
(a) Bianca Rae;
(b) Alexandra Pierce;

(c) all Licensee employees, representatives, or agents who supervised Bianca Rae and/or
Alexandra Pierce; ‘

(d) any Licensee employee, representative, or agent Identified in the responses to Inquiries
10, 11, 12, and/or 16, above; and -

(e) any Programming Personnel who were materially involved in or participated in each
Broadcast identified in response to Inquiries 10, 11, and 12 above.

Provide a copy of all contractual agreements between the Licensee and the following Persons
relating to the employment of each: ' :

(a) Bianca Rae;
(b) Alexandra Pierce; and

(c) all Licensee employees, representatives, or agents who supervised Bianca Rae and/or
Alexandra Pierce. :

Provide a copy of the Licensee’s certificate of incorporation and a current certificate of good
standing in the state in which the Licensee is incorporated.

Provide: (1) federal tax returns for the most recent three years; (2) financial statements prepared
according to generally accepted accounting principles; or (3) some other reliable and objective
documentation that acourately reflects the Licensee’s current financial status.

Provide copies of all Documents that serve as the basis for or otherwise support the responses to
all the Inquiries above, to the extent not already provided.

Filing Requirements

Affidavit Requirement. We direct the Licensee to support its responses with an affidavit or

declaration under penalty of perjury, signed and dated by an authorized officer of the Licensee with
personal knowledge of the representations provided in the Licensee’s response. The affidavit or
declaration must verify the truth and accuracy of the information therein, state that all of the information
requested by this letter that is in the Licensee’s possession, custody, control, or knowledge has been
produced, and state that any and all documents provided in its responses are true and accurate copies of
the original documents. In addition to such general affidavit or declaration of the authorized officer of the
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Licensee described above, if such officer (or any other affiant or declarant) is relying on the personal
knowledge of any other individual rather than his or her own knowledge, and if multiple Licensee
employees contribute to the response, the Licensee shall provide separate affidavits or declarations of
each such individual with personal knowledge that identify clearly to which responses the affiant or
declarant with such personal knowledge is attesting. All such declarations provided must comply with
Section 1,16 of the Rules' and be substantially in the form set forth therein, Failure to support your

responses with a sworn affidavit could subject you to forfeiture.?

Delivery RequirémentsL The Licensee shall send its response by hand or messenger delivery, by
commercial overnight courier, or by First-Class or overnight U.S. Postal Service mail.

~ If sent by messenger or hand delivery, the Licensee should direct its response to Marlene H.
Dortch, Secretary, Federal Communications Commission, 445 12% Street, SW, Room TW-A325,
Washington, DC 20554, to the attention of Melanie A, Godschall, Investigations and Hearings Division,
Enforcement Bureau, Room 4-C330, Federal Communications Commission, with a second copy included
in the delivery to Jeffrey J. Gee, Chief, Investigations and Hearings Division, Enforcement Bureau.2!

If sent by commercial overnight mail (other than U.S. Postal Service Express Mail and Priority
Mail), the response should be sent to the attention of Melanie A, Godschall, Investigations and Hearings
Division, Enforcement Bureau, Federal Communications Commission, 9300 East Hampton Drive,
Capitol Heights, Maryland 20743, with a second copy included in the mailing to Jeffrey J. Gee, Chief,
Investigations and Hearings Division, Enforcement Bureau.

If sent by first-class, Express, or Priority Mail, the response should be sent to Melanie A,
Godschall, Investigations and Hearings Division, Enforcement Bureau, Federal Communications
Commission, 445 12% Street, SW, Room 4-C330, Washington, DC 20554, with a second copy included in
the mailing to Jeffrey J. Gee, Chief, Investigations and Hearings Division, Enforcement Bureau.”

Electronic Copy. The Licensee shall also transmit a copy of the response via email to
Melanie.Godschall@fce.gov and Jeffrey.Gee@fce.gov. The electronic copy shall be produced in a
format that allows the Commission to access and use it, together with instructions and all other materials
necessary to use or interpret the data, including record layouts, data dictionaries, and a description of the

data’s source.

Instructions

Request for Confidential Treatment, In addition to providing the requested information and
documents, any request for confidentiality of certain information or documents must strictly comply with
the requirements of 47 C.F.R. § 0.459, including a statement of the reasons for withholding the materials
from inspection. The request must include a schedule of the information or documents for which
confidentiality is requested that states, individually as to each such item, the information required by
Section 0.459(b) of the Rules including, but not limited to, identifying the specific information for which

19 See 47 CF.R. § 1.16.
20 SBC Comme'ns, Inc., 17 FCC Red at 7600, para. 28 (2002) (imposing $100,000 penalty for failing to submita
sworn written response).

21 Originals and any copies of the response submitted via hand délivery or messenger must be held together with
rubber bands or fasteners and must be submitted without envelopes, See Public Notice, FCC Announces Change in
Filing Locations for Paper Documents, 24 FCC Red 14312 (2009).
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confidential treatment is sought; explaining the degree to which the information is commercial or
financial, or contains a trade secret or is privileged; and explaining how disclosure of the information
could result in substantial competitive harm.”?> Accordingly, a “blanket” request for confidentiality or a-
casual request, including simply stamping pages “confidential,” will not be considered a proper request
- for confidentiality, and those materials will not be treated as confidential.”

Claims of Privilege. If the Licensee withholds any information or documents under claim of
privilege, it shall submit, together with any claim of privilege, a schedule of the items withheld that states,
individually as to each such item: the numbered Inquiry to which each item responds and the type, title,
specific subject matter and date of the item; the names, addresses, positions, and organizations of all
authors and recipients of the item; and the specific grounds for claiming that the item is privileged.

Format of Responses. The response must be organized in the same manner as the questions
asked, i.e., the response to Inquiry 1 should be labeled as responsive to Inquiry 1.

Method of Producing Documents. The Licensee shall submit each requested document in its
entirety, even if only a portion of that document is responsive to an inquiry made herein, including all
- appendices, tables, or other attachments, and all other documents referred to in the document or
attachments. The Licensee shall not edit, cut, expunge, or otherwise take any action to modify any -
document submitted in response to this LOI. In addition to any document the Licensee submits in
response to any inquiry, the Licensee shall also submit all written materials necessary to understand any
document responsive to these inquiries. - .

Identification of Documents. The Licensee shall identify all documents provided in response to
these inquiries in accordance with this paragraph. The Licensee shall include a reference label on each
document that identifies each document in sequential and consecutive numerical order and “Bates” stamp
all documents (e.g., Company 01-000001, where “Company” is the responding entity, “01” signifying
that the document is response to Question 1 of this LOI, and “000001” indicating that the document is the
first page in a consecutively numbered range potentially reaching one hundred thousand). Elements such
as these should be separated by dashes, as indicated. For each document submitted in response to this
LOJ, the Licensee shall provide an index indicating;: the title of the document; the date of the document;
the custodian from whose files the document was retrieved; the author and recipient of the document; and
the corresponding reference label number assigned to the document. If any document is not dated, the
Licensee shall state the date on which it was prepared. If any document does not identify its authors or
recipients, state, if known, the names of the authors or recipients.

Documents Already Provided. If a document responsive to any inquiry made herein has already
been provided to the Enforcement Bureau during this or any other investigation, identify each such
document, when and how it was produced to the Bureau, and specify the Bates-number range for the
document,

Documents No Longer Available. If a document responsive to any Inquiry made herein existed
but is no longer available, or if the Licensee is unable for any reason to produce a document responsive to
any Inquiry, identify each such document by author, recipient, date, title, and specific subject matter, and
explain fully why the document is no longer available or why the Company is otherwise unable to

produce it.

2 Se¢ 47 C.F.R. § 0.459(b).
2 See 47 CF.R. § 0.459(c).
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Retention of Original Documents. With respect only to documents responsive to the specific
Inquiries made herein and any other documents relevant to those Inquiries, the Licensee is directed to
retain the originals of those documents for sixty months from the date of this letter unless (a) the Licensee
is directed or informed by the Enforcement Bureau in writing to retain such documents for some shorter
or longer period of time, or (b) the Enforcement Bureau or the Commission releases an item on the
subject of this investigation, including, but not limited to, a Notice of Apparent Liability for Forfeiture or

an order disposing of the issues in the investigation, in which case, the Licensee must retain all such,
documents until the matter has been finally concluded by payment of any monetary penalty, satisfaction
of all conditions, expiration of all possible appeals, conclusion of any enforcement action brought by the
United States Department of Justice, or execution and implementation of a final settlement with the
Commission or the Enforcement Bureau.

In accordance with Standardized and Enhanced Disclosure Requirements for Television
Broadcast Licensee Public Interest Obligations, Second Report and Order, 27 FCC Red 4535, 4570-71,
para. 74 (2012), unless and until otherwise instructed by the Commission, the Enforcement Bureau or
their representatives, we hereby direct that the Licensee shall not place in its public file or upload to its
online public file this letter, any supplements thereto, or any other correspondence from the Commission
concerning this investigation, materials related to such inquiries, Licensee responses to these Commission
inquiries, or any Documents in connection with such responses not otherwise required to be placed in the
public file or uploaded to the online public file,

Continuing Nature of Inquiries. The specific Inquiries made herein are continuing in nature.
The Licensee is required to produce in the future any and all documents and information that are
responsive to the Inquiries made herein but not initially produced at the time, date, and place specified
herein, In this regard, the Licensee must supplement its responses (a) if the Licensee learns that, in some
material respect, the documents and information initially disclosed were incomplete or incorrect or (b) if
additional responsive documents or information are acquired by or become known to the Licensee after
the initial production. The requirement to update the record will continue for sixty months from the date
of this letter unless (a) the Licensee is directed or informed by the Enforcement Burean in writing that the
Licensee’s obligation to update the record will continue for some shorter or longer period of time, or (b)
the Enforcement Bureau or the Commission releases an item on the subject of this investigation,
including, but not limited to, a Notice of Apparent Liability for Forfeiture or an order disposing of the
issues in the investigation, in which case the obligation to update the record will continue until the matter
has been finally concluded by payment of any such monetary penalty, satisfaction of all conditions,
expiration of all possible appeals, conclusion of any enforcement action brought by the United States.
Department of Justice, or execution and implementation of a final settlement with the Commission or the

Enforcement Bureau,

Construction, The terms “any” and “all,” “and” and “or,” and “each” and “every” shall be
construed inclusively to bring within the scope of the requests for information and documents all
information and documents that might otherwise arguably be construed as outside the scope of the
requests. Likewise, the singular of any word or defined term shall include the plural and the plural of any
such word or defined term shall include the singular. The words “relating to” or “relate to” shall be
construed to mean, whether directly or indirectly, in whole or in part constituting, containing, concerning,
discussing, describing, analyzing, identifying, supporting, qualifying, confirming, contradicting, or
stating.

Definitions

For purposes of this LOI; the following definitions apply. The definitions in this section apply
regardless of whether the first letter of the defined term appears in upper or lower case.
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“Broadcast,” when used as noun, shall mean images or sounds or language transmitted or
disseminated over a station during the course of a radio or television broadcast.

“Broadcast,” when used as a verb, shall mean the fransmission or dissemination of radio or
television communications intended to be received by the public. The verb “broadcast” may be used

“Consideration” shall mean anything of value, including but not limited to, cash, checks, salary,
fees, commissions, loans, management fees, consulting fees, honoraria, per diem allowance, payment of -
third-party invoices, travel and/or hotel expenses, clothing, shoes, jewelry, aesthetic services including
hair and make-up, meals, gifts, bonuses, stylists’ services, other services, the purchase of, or promise to
purchase, advertising time, and/or any other thing of value, from any source, or given by third parties, to
another,

“Document” shall mean the complete original (or in lieu thereof, exact copies of the original) and
any non-identical copy (whether different from the original because of notations on the copy or
otherwise), regardless of origin or location, of any taped, recorded, transcribed, written, typed, printed,
filmed, punched, computer-stored, electronically-stored, or graphic matter of every type and description,
however and by whomever prepared, produced, disseminated, or made,

“Identify,” when used with reference to a person, shall mean to state his or her full legal name,
job title (if any), current business address, business phone number, and e-mail address. If business
address or telephone number are not available, state the person’s home address and telephone number,

“Identify,” when used with reference to a Document, shall mean to state the date, author,
addressee, type of document (e.g., the types of document, as described-above), a brief description of the
subject matter, its present or last known location, and its custodian.

“Identify,” when used with reference to an entity other than a person, shall mean to state its name,
current or last known business address, current or last known business telephone number, and e-mail

address.

“Gulf-California” shall mean Gulf-California Broadcast Company, the Person which is the
licensee of the Stations and any predecessor-in-interest, or wholly or partially owned subsidiary.

“Licensee” shall mean Gulf-California Broadcast Company, and any predecessor-in-interest, -
affiliate, parent, wholly or partially owned subsidiary, other affiliated company or business, and all
owners, including but not limited to, partners or prineipals, and all directors, officers, employees, or
agents, including consultants and any other persons working for or on behalf of the foregoing at any time
during the period covered by this LOI. Although this LOI refers to Licensee to collectively include each
person or entity listed in this definition, any responses must specifically detail and distinguish between
the actions or responsibilities of each entity.

“Person” shall mean any individual, entity, business, company, association, or organization,

“Programming” shall mean audio/video content of any type or format, including, but not limited
to interviews, news-style coverage, entertainment programs, documentaries, and informational programs
but shall exclude commercial spot advertisements of 60 seconds or less in duration that are displayed
during program breaks in accordance with standard industry practice.
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“Programming Personnel” shall mean employees who are on-air talent and/or materially
participate in the on-air broadcast of program material or in programming decisions including
management, direction, creation, planning, production, approval, and their supervisory employees.

“Station™ shall mean any station licensed to Gulf-California, including the following: Station
KESQ-TV, Palm Springs, California, FID 25577; KCWQ-LD, Palm Springs, California, FID 167761;

KCWQ-LP, Palm Springs, California, FID 130100; KDFX-CD, Indio/Palm Springs, California, FID
51207; K27DS, Yucca Valley, California, FID 25576; K31MF-D, Yucca Valley, California, FID 186768;
K42LC-D, Yucca Valley, California, FID 186844; KPSP-CD, Cathedral City, California, FID 10535;
KUNA-LP, Indio, California, FID 19779; KUNA-LD, Palm Springs, California, FID 167763; KYAV-
LD, Palm Springs, California, FID 2961. -

“Station Social Media Account” shall mean the following: www.twitter.com/Bianca_Rae;
www.instagram.com/bianca_rae; www.facebook.com/Bianca-Rae; www.twitter.com/@_APierce;
www.instagram.com/the_. alle _cat; www, facebook. com/alexandraepierce; and any other social media
account established by Programming Personnel of Gulf-California and/or the Station for related to the

Station and their employment.




